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B Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF HONG KONG PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Productivity Council (the
“Council”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 5 to 52, which comprise the
consolidated and the Council's statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and
the consolidated and the Council’s income and expenditure account, the consolidated
statement of changes in funds and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group and the Council as at 31 March 2021, and of the Group and the Council’s
financial performance and the Group’s cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management of the Council are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance, and for such internal control as management
of the Council determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management of the Council are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management of the Council either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the Council members in overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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BIABENERE
Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 18 of the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management of the
Council.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tam Kwok Yiu
Practicing Certificate No. P02575

Hong Kong, 28 July 2021

HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2021 % 3 A 31 H 31 March 2021

2021 2020
MEE BT BT IT
Note HKS$’000 HK$'000
FFiRENEE Non current assets
M~ BEEE Property, plant and equipment 6 197,986 208,343
M EE Intangible assets 7 8,395 7,891
FREEE Right-of-use assets 13 1,374 1,871
207,755 218,105
MENEE Current assets
FEWERF R EMRE EE Accounts receivable and other current assets 9 262,760 196,083
AR [O I8 Tax refundable 23(0) 2 2
BE ~ RITEREERER Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits 10 1,090,658 607,150
1,353,420 803,235
mEaE Current liabilities
FEIRF R EMRE A& Accounts payable and other current liabilities 11 1,017,246 537,536
HEarE Lease liabilities 14 519 483
FEARIR Tax payable 23(c) 214 122
1,017,979 538,141
mENE ERE Net current assets 335,441 265,094
BEERRE&E Total assets less current liabilities 543,196 483,199
FFiREIEE Non-current liabilities
GiEN ==L Lease liabilities 14 926 1,436
REE Net assets 542,270 481,763
wmEx Total funds
S ENREGERES Li#E Capital subvention fund and reserves 540,557 480,064
attributable to the Council
FEE RIS R Non-controlling interests 15(d) 1,713 1,699
HER Total funds 15 542,270 481,763

EEARR 2021 F 7 B 28 ARELFF A -
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 28 July 2021.

HEL =Ex
Lin Sun Mo, Willy Patrick Wong Chi Kwong
T BIEE

Chairman Deputy Chairman

512 25 52 BNNEEAYEREKN—ED -

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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B Statement of Financial Position

2021 2020
& BETT AT
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERBEE Non-current assets
W2 ~ B AERE Property, plant and equipment 6 197,374 207,623
mEE Intangible assets 7 8,362 7,847
FREEE Right-of-use assets 13 1,270 1,694
KRB ARIEE Investments in subsidiaries 8 18,722 18,722
225,728 235,886
MENEE Current assets
FEEBRFA N E R B & A Accounts receivable and other current assets 9 260,411 195,098
FEUS KT /A R FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 12 810 1,169
BE - RITEREERER Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits 10 1,068,119 589,056
1,329,340 785,323
mENaRE Current liabilities
FENIRR N EMRE A E Accounts payable and other current liabilities [l 1,014,018 536,572
HEas Amounts due to subsidiaries 12 11,926 11,841
FERTHEBARFIE Lease liabilities 14 423 402
1,026,367 548,815
RENEEFE Net current assets 302,973 236,508
BEERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 528,701 472,394
IERBEE Non-current liabilities
HEa& Lease liabilities 14 209 1,332
FEE Net assets 527,792 471,062
nEg Total funds 15 527,792 471,062
EENRR 2021 F£7 B 28 ARG TR ©
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 28 July 2021.
HER EEK
Lin Sun Mo, Willy Patrick Wong Chi Kwong
FE BIEE
Chairman Deputy Chairman

12 25 52 BNNEEAYERERN—ED -

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

EENR BIRBERE RITFRE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds

#HZ 2021 F£3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

BEREENR
Attributable to the Council
=3 E| 314004
=fiIES WA gL
Capital B E RERE k] Non- EEHE
subvention Revenue Exchange Total controlling Total
fund reserve reserve interests funds
BETT BETT BETR BRI BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2019%F 4 B 1 BMESR At 1 April 2019 120,571 313,392 1,773 435,736 2,035 437,771
FARE Surplus for the year - 53676 - 53676 (214) 53462
FREMEESE Other comprehensive loss for the year:
BETREBRENELEZR Exchange difference on translation of - - (973) (973) (122) (1,095)
financial statements of operations in
the PRC
FR2ANELE Total comprehensive income for the year - 53676 973) 52,703 (336) 52367
EXEDLEE (W 150) Movement in capital subvention fund (8375) - - (8375) - (8375)
(note 15(a))
202045 3 A 31 BR&E#H At 31 March 2020 112,19 367,068 800 480,064 1,699 481,763
B 2020 4 B 1 BRYES At 1 April 2020 112,196 367,068 800 480,064 1,699 481,763
FRBRH Surplus for the year - 65,645 - 65,645 (137) 65,508
FREMDEBE Other comprehensive income for the year:
BENREERENELEZR Exchange difference on translation of = = 1,434 1,434 151 1,585
financial statements of operations in
the PRC
FRRERGHEE Total comprehensive income for the year - 65,645 1,434 67,079 14 67,093
EXEHSEE (15 156) Movement in capital subvention fund (note (6,586) - - (6,586) - (6,586)
15(a))
72021 % 3 B 31 BROESR At 31 March 2021 105,610 432,713 2,234 540,557 1,713 542,270

HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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B Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account

#HZE 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020
FaE BETT AT
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
WA Income
RE M EEINBUNEBD Government subvention for recurrent activities 16 233,460 237,362
RIS Service income 17 565,968 470,359
EfA Other income 18 25,938 13,881
825,366 721,602
S Expenditure
BEHE Staff emoluments 19 (395,591) (371,420)
Hithz Other expenses 22 (370,705) (304,948)
fEIBIEER Surplus before tax 59,070 45234
FTi5%:, Income tax expense 23(@a) (148) (147)
58,922 45,087
LEXREBESEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 15(a) 6,586 8,375
FREBER Surplus for the year 65,508 53,462
BB Attributable to:
HEENRB The Council 15(b) 65,645 53,676
JEIE R A R R A Non-controlling interests 15(d) (137) (214)
65,508 53,462

HENR BIHENSRE REERE
HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

# 2 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
SR Surplus for the year 65,508 53,462
Hit2 MUz /( BE) Other comprehensive income/(loss)
ARENEREFHFEAZREEN Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be reclassified
Hit2>mas / (B5E) - to income and expenditure account in subsequent periods:
BmEE A REMEZERREMNE Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of 1,585 (1,095)
HER operations in the People’s Republic of China
FREMEEEE / (E518) (#1%) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 1,585 (1,095)
FR2EULREE Total comprehensive income for the year 67,093 52,367
BER Attributable to:
EENR The Council 67,079 52,703
FEER R R A Non-controlling interests 14 (336)
67,093 52,367

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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B Statement of Comprehensive Income

#HZE 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020
FE BETT AT
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
A Income
REMSREIRI BT EBD Government subvention for recurrent activities 16 233,460 237,362
RIS Service income 17 543,528 465,995
EfA Other income 18 25,565 12,635
802,553 715,992
E-2a) Expenditure
liEdSEies Staff emoluments 19 (387,249) (362,236)
Hipsz Other expenses 22 (358,574) (310,262)
WEAREBSEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 15(a) 6,586 8,375
FARGBREZEUIE Surplus and total comprehensive income for 15(b) 63,316 51,869
the year

HENR BIHENSRE REERE
HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

#2ZF 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

ima R iEsx g

2021 2020
(b BT BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEBEENRERE Cash flows from operating activities
FRELRI & AR Surplus before tax 59,070 45234
FARIE - Adjustments for:
sHEE—REBE ARz Wi Gain on deregistration of an associate 18 = (13)
F BN Interest income 18 (1,878) (3,154)
HEaEzFE Interest on lease liabilities 22 69 91
M ~ BREMRENEESE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 22 596 273
e Depreciation 22 43,758 48742
A Amortisation 22 4,948 4,356
SEBERE Provision for expected credit losses 9(c) 122 158
EEESSHRZICERE Operating surplus before working capital
changes 106,685 95,687
FEMER AR B B AR B) & EE IS AN Increase in accounts receivable and other current
assets (66,712) (37,309)
ZRRIFEIL I Increase in restricted cash (452,668) (216,969)
JEN RS A EMREI EEEEIG Increase in accounts payable and other current
liabilities 479,499 181,001
REEANRS Cash generated from operations 66,804 22,410
B EBZEMEHR PRC corporate income tax paid 23(0) (56) (33)
REEHEENRERETFE Net cash flows from operating activities 66,748 22377
BEEFHEENRERE Cash flows from investing activities
EWFIE Interest received 1,878 3,154
FE=EALEEEER Increase in fixed deposits with original maturities
over 3 months when placed (399,913) (394,729)
=EAL LB EREBRTEEE Proceeds from matured fixed deposits with
original maturities over 3 months when placed 363,308 386,843
HEWH - BEMREATEIIE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 9 40
I — B ARIFTE IR Proceed received on deregistration of an associate = 387
HBEWE -~ BENRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (33,337) (36,899)
EBEmEIEE Purchase of intangible assets (5,551) (5,806)
BEENERANIRERETE Net cash flows used in investing activities (73,606) (47,010)
MEEEBIRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BRAEaE Lease payments 14 (555) (534)
ME R ERNIRESRE T Net cash used in financing activities (555) (534)
RE LIRS EBYRANEEE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (7,413) (25,167)
ReRRSEEYIEREE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 72,430 98,249
EXEENTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 1,078 (652)
RERFREZEEYEIREREE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 66,095 72,430

EENR FHIHBENRE R SRE

HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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B2 2021 &£ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

1. SEHEMEEER

BEBEENRER ( "TEENR. ) R—RBUTERH%
% R 1967 FRE (BBEENDRERKH) BRIz -
AED R MR RN E B AL MBI AT B
EE 78 SRAEEDKNIE -

LENDRIEWBAR (4% S8, ) NERXEE
RERBEEN - BEBIRUMFNAER - WimEH%
WERED ~ HESEA  REEERSABIAEL
ENHIENE -

MiBAREN
EEADRRBATNFENT

B Notes to the Financial Statements

1. COUNCIL AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Council is a subvented body corporate established in 1967 under the Hong Kong
Productivity Council Ordinance. The address of its registered office and principal place of
operation is at HKPC Building, 78 Tat Chee Avenue, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Council and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) are to promote increased productivity, encourage the more efficient utilisation
of resources, and to advise measures designed to increase productivity via development
or dissemination of programmes, methods or techniques for the business sectors in Hong
Kong.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Council's subsidiaries are as follows:

=1 EEM IR BHEITR SEER HREE HIE EEXRH
Name EEME, BEEX i NEHE ABFE  Principal
Place of Particulars Group's Held Heldby activities
incorporation of issued and effective by the subsidiaries
and operation paid up capital interest Council
EENIRE B 5 10,000 TT 100% 100% - AEBLEEIRERZE
(%) BRAT Hong Kong HK$10,000 FMIEE KRR R

HKPC Technology (Holdings)
Company Limited

LEN B
(#Z8) BRAR Hong Kong
Productivity

(Holdings) Limited

£EHN (%) i
FEABRAT PRC
Productivity (Dongguan)

Consulting Co. Ltd.

£EHD G AR
HBHABRAT PRC

Productivity (Shenzhen)
Consulting Co. Ltd.

FRBEEN F
EHARAT PRC

Shenzhen SZ-HK Productivity
Foundation Co. Ltd.

FYRBEED R
E AR AR PRC

Shenzhen SZ-HK
Productivity Foundation
Training Institute

12 EENR BIRBERE RITFRE

Commercialisation
of patents project
deliverables of HKPC

FEIE 20,000,000 7T 100% 100% - HEEK
HK$20,000,000 Investment holding
i 5,000,000 TT 100% - 100% AR R EEHIARIE
HKS$5,000,000 Consultancy and

training services

51,610,000 T 100% - 100%  EERIEEETIARTS
HK$1,610,000 Consultancy and

training services

AR 1,540,000 JC 64.94% - 6494%  EERIRIETIARTE
RMB1,540,000 Consultancy and

training services

AR 50,000 7T 64.94% - 1000 BRI
RMB50,000 Training services

HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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STC B—EEHREAEN - MEEDRRR SITC KRR
Bfiz— o STC BORIRHA R B R ABRZEEF
DNHIRB RAEE SRR -

RIBPEARENRSEEEER  SEEAEMRE
BRESIEE » RIEAEREEDRARINE - ARE
ENRRSEHEAZLIHRAER  WAREBHEY SITC
R RENZEILSEE - RikEENRBIREH
SITC YFREE -

2. ERATEMEHREER (TEHEHBER
E#A )
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Notes to the Financial Statements

#ZF 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

1. COUNCIL AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Agreement related to Hong Kong Industrial Artificial Intelligence and
Robotics Centre Limited (“FLAIR")

FLAIR was incorporated as a company limited by guarantee with the Council as the sole
member. FLAIR aims to develop innovative solutions on artificial intelligence and robotics
technologies to facilitate the intelligent manufacturing for Hong Kong enterprises.

Although the Council is the sole member of FLAIR, the Council has not consolidated the
results of FLAIR since under the terms of the agreement entered into with the Government,
the Council is not exposed to, and does not have the rights or the power to affect variable
returns from its involvement with FLAIR.

Hong Kong Productivity Council Shenzhen Innovation and Technology Centre
(Futian) (“SITC")

SITC was formed as an institution with the Council as one of the founders of SITC. SITC aims
to provide non-profit making public services relating to the application of innovation and
technology and support the development of the Greater Bay Area.

According to the relevant law and regulations of the People’s Republic of China, an
institution has no shareholders or members, accordingly no profits can be distributed to
the Council. As the Council is not exposed to and does not have the rights or the power to
affect variable returns from its involvement with SITC, the Council has not consolidated the
results of SITC.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(@)  Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued a number of new or
amended HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 9

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Conceptual Framework for Financial Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
Reporting 2018 (Revised)

The adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs does not have any material impact on the
Group's or Council's results and state of affairs nor any substantial changes in the Group's
accounting policies.

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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Notes to the Financial Statements

#HZE 2021 F 3 A 31 HIEEFE Year ended 31 March 2021

2. ERATEMEHREER (THEHBER
H#EH|, ) (@)

(b) EIEMEMREMZHNET RAIEET EHE
RS R

OIS AR B B R BRI / ST BB
BREERIDERABHREY - IRAEERER
Fl - AEE A NN EERCELR AN BRERE
BT -

EREQEIERE 1 5] aENERERETIE
(B3TA) e’

ERMBRELEAZE 16 97 2019 BARRESEEETHE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current’

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions'

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework’

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS  Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
4 Effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or after the

beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group performed a preliminary assessment
on the impact of the adoption of these issued but not yet effective HKFRSs, and expected
no significant impact to the Group's results of operations and financial position upon
adoption.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Productivity Council
Ordinance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

#ZF 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)  Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the
historical cost convention and are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

(c)  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Council and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Council. Control is achieved when the Council has power over the investee, is exposed or
has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Council, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Income and expenditure and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the Council and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the income and expenditure account. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to the income and expenditure account or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

In the Council's statement of financial position, investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost
less impairment losses.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@ Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Council, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary's
net identifiable assets.

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)  Non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
within total funds, separately from funds attributable to the Council. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
and expenditure account and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total surplus or deficit and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the Council. Changes in the Group's interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as reserve transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated total funds to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

(b)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Hong Kong Productivity Council Building ("HKPC Building") 50 years
Leasehold improvements

- Office 10 years
- Non-office 3 years

Furniture and equipment 3to 10 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

The gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the income and expenditure account on
the date of retirement or disposal.

(c) Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Computer software costs are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software and
are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation of computer software is charged to the income and
expenditure account on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 3
years.

(d) Leases

The Group as a lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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Notes to the Financial Statements

#ZF 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

4., SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d)  Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost (which comprises the initial measurement
of lease liabilities, initial direct costs, reinstatement costs, any payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received), and subsequently at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and
decreased by lease payments made.

Payments associated with short-term leases (i.e,, leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and low value leases are recongised on a straight-line basis as expenses in the income
and expenditure account.

The Group as a lessor

Rental income is recognised in the income and expenditure account on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(e) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investment in equity securities

Investments in equity securities that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, which includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the investee;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments by the investee;

- it becoming probable that the investee will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the investee; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in the investee
below its cost.

For investments in subsidiaries and an associate (including those recognised using the
equity method), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount. The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 4(e)(iii).
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets

The Group assesses an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") for all debt instruments
stated at cost or amortised cost. ECL are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECL are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECL are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECL. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date.
The Group has established an allowance matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows independently of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income and expenditure account if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal, or value-in-use, if determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the income and
expenditure account in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(f)  Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

(g)  Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(h)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of original maturities when
placed.

()  Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an expense in
the income and expenditure account when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in the income and expenditure account except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in funds, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in funds,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from differences which arise on initial
recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

(k) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

() Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the income and
expenditure, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is recognised in the income
and expenditure account as follows:
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Income recognition (continued)

(i) Government subventions

Government subventions for recurrent activities are recognised as income in the income
and expenditure account when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching with them and that the subventions will be received.
Government subventions that compensate the Group for expenditure incurred are
recognised as income in the income and expenditure account on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenditure are incurred. Unspent subventions for recurrent
activities arising in the financial year will be retained by the Council as reserves up to a limit
as agreed with the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ("the
Government"). Amount in excess of the limit will be returned to the Government in the
following financial year.

(ii)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

(iij)  Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from service contracts is recognised when control of services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of
consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Service income is generally recognised over time, using an input method to measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group or the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. The input
method recognises revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative
to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of the services. Where the criteria for over-time
recognition are not met, service income is recognised at a point in time when control of
the service is transferred to the customer.

(m) Contract assets

A contact asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)  Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received a consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract.

(o) Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant and equipment,
or intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an
asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(i) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Group
can specifically identify.

(i) The costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying
performance obligations in the future.

(iii) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the income and expenditure
account on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which
the asset related is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

(p)  Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the month are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the average rate for that month. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchanges rates ruling at the reporting
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income and expenditure account.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated to Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rate at the reporting date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an enterprise outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences recognised in reserve which relate to that enterprise is reclassified from reserve
to the income and expenditure account when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(g) Capital subvention fund

The capital subvention fund accumulated from the prior years to compensate the Group
for the costs of the subvented assets is recognised in the income and expenditure account
over the useful lives of the subvented assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that

person:

U]

(ii)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

U]

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected

to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

EENR FHIHBENRE R SRE
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period, are described below.

Estimate of revenue and costs of work

Depending on the terms of individual contract of services, the Group recognises its
service income over time if the Group has met the criteria in paragraph 35 of HKFRS 15
or at a point in time when the control of the assets is transferred to the customer. For
service income recognised over time, the Group reviews and revises the estimates of
contract revenue and contract costs prepared for each contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted service income is determined in accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Budgeted service costs which mainly comprise staff costs and costs of
materials are prepared by experienced management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, management conducts periodic reviews on the management budgets by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

Measurement of expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets at amortised
cost is an area that requires significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behaviour.

Significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for
measuring expected credit loss, such as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk; and

- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of expected
credit losses.

Where the actual result is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of the financial assets at amortised cost and credit loss expenses in the
period in which such estimate is changed.
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6. Y - BREMERE 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2021 3H31H 31 March 2021
=
The Group
AEEF FREAREKHE
EENKE HETRE Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and HWER
Building improvements equipment Total
BT T BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RE: Cost
20205481 H At 1 April 2020 267,854 105,315 243,564 616,733
NE Additions - 11,716 21,621 33,337
HE Disposals - (151) (11,084) (11,235)
ERAmTEE Reclassified from intangible assets = = 108 108
BREFE Exchange adjustments - 73 156 229
20213 A 31 H At 31 March 2021 267,854 116,953 254,365 639,172
REHIAE - Accumulated depreciation
20200 F 481 H At 1 April 2020 159,120 58,247 191,023 408,390
FEITE Charge for the year 5,345 19,149 18,755 43,249
HE# 0 Written back on disposals - (151) (10,479) (10,630)
ERAMTESE Reclassified from intangible assets - - 5 5
HERE Exchange adjustments = 73 99 172
R2021E3 R 31 H At 31 March 2021 164,465 77,318 199,403 441,186
ARMEFE - Net book value
R20214E3 831 H At 31 March 2021 103,389 39,635 54,962 197,986
20205 3 831 H 31 March 2020
%6
The Group
HERF VS &
EENKIE RETR Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and “axg
Building improvements equipment Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RE: Cost
R2019F481H At 1 April 2019 267,784 87,329 238,828 593,941
NE Additions 70 20,502 16,327 36,899
HE Disposals - (2,462) (11,477) (13,939)
BERE Exchange adjustments - (54) (114) (168)
R2020F 3 331 H At 31 March 2020 267,854 105,315 243,564 616,733
RETIRE : Accumulated depreciation
MN2019%F 48 1H At 1 April 2019 153,775 39,494 180,603 373,872
FEIE Charge for the year 5,345 21,002 21,904 48,251
HE#(o] Written back on disposals - (2,195) (11,432) (13,627)
HERE Exchange adjustments - (54) (52) (106)
R 20203 B 31 H At 31 March 2020 159,120 58,247 191,023 408,390
AREEE - Net book value
20203 A 31 H At 31 March 2020 108,734 47,068 52,541 208,343
HENB B RE RERS 25
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6. HI% - BEFN
2021 %3831 H

x| (&) 6.

31 March 2021

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

£ENB
The Council
AEEF FREAREH
EENKE HETRE Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and HWER
Building improvements equipment Total
BT T BT BT BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
RiE: Cost
20205481 H At 1 April 2020 267,854 104,519 241,855 614,228
NE Additions - 11,716 21,554 33,270
HE Disposals - (151) (11,014) (11,165)
BRAErEE Reclassified from intangible assets = = 108 108
R2021E3 831 H At 31 March 2021 267,854 116,084 252,503 636,441
FEHIRE : Accumulated depreciation
R20200F481H At 1 April 2020 159,120 57,452 190,033 406,605
FEITE Charge for the year 5,345 19,149 18,531 43,025
H B35 [o] Written back on disposals - (151) (10,417) (10,568)
EREMEE Reclassified from intangible assets = - 5 5
»m2021 331 H At 31 March 2021 164,465 76,450 198,152 439,067
BRmEEE: Net book value
2021 E3 B 31 H At 31 March 2021 103,389 39,634 54,351 197,374
2020 3 A 31 H 31 March 2020
EENR
The Council
HEETF RIERERE
S ENRE HEIR Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and R
Building improvements equipment Total
EETIT EETIT ST T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RE: Cost
2019481 H At 1 April 2019 267,784 86,479 237,018 591,281
= Additions 70 20,502 16,245 36,817
HE Disposals - (2,462) (11,408) (13,870)
7202043 A 31 H At 31 March 2020 267,854 104,519 241,855 614,228
2EHIRE : Accumulated depreciation
R2019F481H At 1 April 2019 153,775 38,645 179,762 372,182
FEITE Charge for the year 5,345 21,002 21,647 47,994
HEE[D Written back on disposals - (2,195) (11,376) (13,571)
R2020F 3 831 H At 31 March 2020 159,120 57452 190,033 406,605
RHERE: Net book value
202083 831 H At 31 March 2020 108,734 47,067 51,822 207,623
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BREE 7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2021 f£3 H31H 31 March 2021
£HE E£ENR
The Group The Council
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE: Cost
2020481 H At 1 April 2020 48,364 48,250
N Additions 5,551 5,551
ERIIRTEE Reclassified to property, plant and equipment (108) (108)
BREFAE Exchange adjustments 10 -
20213 31 H At 31 March 2021 53,817 53,693
FEHEE - Accumulated amortisation
R2020FE 481 H At 1 April 2020 40,473 40,403
FEE Amortisation for the year 4,948 4,933
HEE[D Reclassified to property, plant and equipment (5) (5)
BETEE Exchange adjustments 6 -
2021 FE3 831 H At 31 March 2021 45,422 45,331
IRMEFE - Net book value
20213 B 31 H At 31 March 2021 8,395 8,362
2020 3 H31H 31 March 2020
£H £ENB
The Group The Council
HBETIT BIETIT
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FE: Cost
MR2019F 481 H At 1 April 2019 43,647 43,502
NE Additions 5,806 5,803
HE Disposals (1,080) (1,055)
BERE Exchange adjustments ©) -
R2020FE 3 831 H At 31 March 2020 48,364 48,250
FEHHE - Accumulated amortisation
R2019F481H At 1 April 2019 37,201 37,118
FRE Amortisation for the year 4,356 4,340
HER Written back on disposals (1,080) (1,055)
BERE Exchange adjustments @ -
20203 A 31 H At 31 March 2020 40,473 40,403
IRERE : Net book value
7202043 A 31 H At 31 March 2020 7,891 7,847
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8. MMBATNKE 8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
$ENBR
The Council
2021 2020
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FELTHREMD  IREAERTE Unlisted shares, at cost 20,010 20,010
B OREEE Less: Impairment loss (1,288) (1,288)
R3B31H At 31 March 18,722 18,722
S ENRRBARBREARREHRNFIEEMBREN Particulars of the Council's subsidiaries as at the reporting date are disclosed in note 1.
1 R TLURE -
9. FEWRRIE HtRHEE 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
-] £ENB
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEWERTR Accounts receivable 16,062 25,922 15,710 25,893
BREE (M5 a Contract assets (note a) 132,430 63,360 132,410 63,360
TATERIR Prepayments 24,611 27,791 23,346 27,401
BRI (MIEE b) Contract costs (note b) 49,544 57,698 49,544 57,698
ReMEMEWEIE Deposits and other receivables 40,450 21,527 39,678 20,961
263,097 196,298 260,688 195,313
JEME (FYEE o Less: Impairment (note c) (337) (215) (277) (215)
R Current 262,760 196,083 260,411 195,098
@ B‘BNEE (@) Contract assets
-]
The Group
2021 2020
BT T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EREEEEN Contract assets arising from
BRI AR TS Consultancy 121,160 62,237
=3l Training 12 25
BUSEETIRIRES Manufacturing support 11,258 1,098
BREELARE Total contract assets 132,430 63,360
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9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

(@)  Contract assets (continued)

£ENB

The Council
2021 2020
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

BREEEERN Contract assets arising from

EERI AR S Consultancy 121,140 62,237
523 Training 12 25
BUEES BRI Manufacturing support 11,258 1,098
BREERRE Total contract assets 132,410 63,360

ANEEZWANS R HRERH RS - 553l RIEHEX
&R - HETYAESKRES RERE TR
AFER - EAWEHEBIhTEREAEB RS - R
BENEBR  ERRaNEECRAZSEEEN D

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from consultancy, training,
manufacturing support, publications and advertising, and exhibitions and study mission
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of
performance obligations. Upon completion of performance obligations, the amounts

KB AEWERSR © recognised as contract assets are reclassified to accounts receivable.
72021 3 A 31 B AEEZTERUCISEE R The expected timing of recovery of the contract assets at the reporting date is as follows:
nr:
£E
The Group
2021 2020
BT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 88,734 45,391
F_EEFREF 2-5 years 43,696 17,969
B EELERE Total contract assets 132,430 63,360
$ENE
The Council
2021 2020
BT BIEETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 88,724 45,391
E_FEFRF 2-5 years 43,686 17,969
BREELRE Total contract assets 132,410 63,360

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
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9. FEWRRFMEHMREEE (&)

(b) EFIMA

EXEERMMEHENRE  BREAZANRAZE
B EMB AR — 2z R LB LR
BWCERB R

(© FEUERMRGHEERE

EHERR L B EETIRAVBEEESNE SIS
T

9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

(b)  Contract costs

The capitalised contract costs are charged to the consolidated income and expenditure
account on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which
the related cost is recognised, when the Group satisfies performance obligations of
respective service contracts.

(c)  Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets

The movements in the allowance for impairment of accounts receivable and contract
assets are as follows:

€5

The Group
2021 2020
BT BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
n4B81H At 1 April 215 57
B K Increase 122 158
M3B31H At 31 March 337 215

$ENE

The Council
2021 2020
BT T BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
n4B1H At 1 April 215 57
NEREEEES Increase 62 158
M3B31H At 31 March 277 215

BEDTMFEENR RS A RERRRERETERNE
EREIEMET - BREDREFEUBERINZARR
FHBZBHREET (1 BERERMTR) &5
BRI NG R - SERFBELRNHRE H A
BEBEBEFEMN - BERREARREENORIDA A1
AIEER - —RME @ BERSABREE—FIHR
BEESZHATLUMEH -

30 EENR BIRBERE RITFRE

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using an allowance matrix
to measure expected credit losses. The allowance rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e, by customer type
and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21



9. BURMREMREE (&)

(© MBUERAREGHEERE (&)

IR Ao L PR S R B AR AR S R
T

&H

720213831 H

RAFSERaRbIAE

Notes to the Financial Statements

#ZF 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(continued)
(c) Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the accounts receivable
using an allowance matrix:

The Group

At 31 March 2021

Past due
DR —E ={@A
1188 =@&R ME
ENEA Less than 1to3 Over et
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
TEHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 0.099% 0.216% 2.442% 4.175% 0.227%
IRMm#AEE (BBTT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 139,861 3,706 901 4,024 148,492
TAEA=EEE (BBTIT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 139 8 22 168 337
72020538318 At 31 March 2020
Pt
Past due
AN —% =@A
1EA =f@A Pk
BNHA Less than 1103 Over 485
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
AR EREX Expected credit loss rate 0.101% 0.720% 0.460% 1.572% 0.241%
BREAEE (BT IT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 77,064 1,789 3,560 6,369 89,282
TEHEEEE (BT IT) Expected credit losses(HK$'000) 78 13 16 108 215

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
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9. MENRFREMREEE (8) 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

(0 EUERFRGHNEERE (&) () Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets (continued)
Y$ENR The Council
2021 FE3H831H At 31 March 2021
&g
Past due
Ui —F =fER
1188 ={&R HME
ENER Less than 1to3 Over et
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
AR EREX Expected credit loss rate 0.099% 0.234% 2.442% 2.725% 0.187%
BREAAE (BETIT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 139,841 3,414 201 3,964 148,120
TEH=EEE (BT IT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 139 8 22 108 277
7 2020F3A31H At 31 March 2020
piand
Past due
AN —= =@A
1A =f@A Dk
BNER Less than 1t03 Over FEHS
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
SEEEIS={ 5B Expected credit loss rate 0.101% 0.720% 0.460% 1.579% 0.241%
BREAAE (BBTIT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 77,064 1,789 3,560 6,340 89,253
TEfifEERE (BT ) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 78 13 16 108 215
10. IRE 8RS R EHITESL 10. CASH, BANK BALANCES AND FIXED DEPOSITS
-] $ENB
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT BETIT BT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EREEIBNERER Fixed deposits with original maturities over
3 months when placed 183,362 146,187 176,481 139,975
BITEFMRS Cash at banks and on hand 907,296 460,963 891,638 449,081

BAFSHR MR AIRSE  $R1T1EFM  Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits in

EHFHAEER the statement of financial position 1,090,658 607,150 1,068,119 589,056
ZIRIBL Restricted cash (841,201) (388,533) (841,201) (388,533)
=EABEEIEBNEHTR Fixed deposits with original maturities over

3 months when placed (183,362) (146,187) (176,481) (139,975)
FERenERNESR Cash and cash equivalents in the
WEEEY consolidated statement of cash flows 66,095 72,430 50,437 60,548
32 HENR B EESRE R ERS
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10. RE - |ITERRTEHER (8)

R2021 3831 B £ENDBMEENETERT
9 841,201,000 7& (2020 4F : 388,533,000 7T ) FMAER
AIEBRITIRE BERANEEBFESTEIEERMNIER
B - BESASEE RER LR - REAFIEERIER
SRITER P EEMNF E—HRIZBUN -

2021 3 A 31 B EERBITERBEERIETER
RERITHIFRIE & 20,378,000 7T (2020 4F 15,828,000
BIL)  REEARNERTFEZPRBUTEBIIINERS

agreement.

#ZF 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

RAFSERaRbIAE

Notes to the Financial Statements

10. CASH, BANK BALANCES AND FIXED DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks of the Council and the Group as at 31 March 2021 included HK$841,201,000
(2020: HK$388,533,000) which were placed in separate project bank accounts and restricted
for the purpose of projects governed by respective Government funding schemes. Any
unspent funding, together with the interest income generated in project bank accounts, is
returned to the Government upon completion of the project or termination of the project

Cash at banks of the Group as at 31 March 2021 included HK$20,378,000 (2020:
HK$15,828,000) which were placed with banks in the PRC, the remittance of which is
subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the

HIRGIFEREE - PRC government.
1. EfEFREMREEE 11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
== SENR
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BEFx BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERTERER Trade payables 45,759 26,845 44,820 26,820
ERaE (Hia) Contract liabilities (note a) 258,218 217,366 257,315 217,205
TAWGRIR Receipts in advance
— BB ES — Government disbursement funds 628,043 220,877 628,043 220,877
FRrERE (f5Eb) Provision for annual leave compensation
(note b) 7,962 6,844 7,962 6,844
FETE B R EMENR Accruals and other payables 77,264 65,604 75,878 64,826
1,017,246 537,536 1,014,018 536,572

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
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1. EBAEREEMASEE ()

CY =Y S) =

11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(continued)

(@)  Contract liabilities

®E $ENB
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT T AETIT BT AETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAWR F 2 HASRIE Short-term advances received from
customers
EERI AR S — Consultancy 252,452 212,579 251,549 212,418
b —Training 1,807 1,120 1,807 1,120
BUEET BRI - Manufacturing support 3,959 3,667 3,959 3,667
ERBERRE Total contract liabilities 258,218 217,366 257,315 217,205

(b)  FRFH{EER

(b)  Provision for annual leave compensation

KEMEENR

The Group and the Council
2021 2020
BT T BIEETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
w4818 At 1 April 6,844 6414
g R Provision made 15,523 14,979
EEERERE Utilised in the year (14,405) (14,549)
Mm3B831H At 31 March 7,962 6,844

R (REEOD) BN 8 REB—ENEENEHE
ELERFR (BREFARAREBH)  BZTRE
BAREE—ABFANNEERT - MEMESRRE -
YWAZAFEMBES  BATBERERBRERERNFR
FHHENRESHIE - FREERBEMEETRES
RAREAEBRIMERMATIE ©

34 EENR BIRBERE RITFRE

Under Part VIIIA of the Employment Ordinance, staff members who have completed a full
year of services are entitled to take at least seven days of leave (including Sundays and
Public Holidays) consecutively within one calendar year. Any staff member who leaves his
or her employment is entitled to annual leave compensation. She/He is entitled to receive
in cash the annual leave pay earned but not utilised. Provision is made for the employees'
untaken annual leave balances at the reporting date.
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12. AMOUNTS DUE FROM /TO SUBSIDIARIES

FEU / (B A RRIEAMIKE « A&ES - AliRERE Amounts due from / to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
7B o demand.
13. {EFHEEE 13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(@) E£E (@) The Group
MAERE HEWE
Office Leased BER
equipment properties Total
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2019F481H At 1 April 2019 2,118 244 2,362
FEE Depreciation for the year (424) 67) (491)
20203831 BHE At 31 March 2020 and
2020%£4 8 1 H 1 April 2020 1,694 177 1,871
FETE Depreciation for the year (424) (85) (509)
REREE Exchange adjustments - 12 12
2021 3 831 H At 31 March 2021 1,270 104 1374
b) HENR (b)  The Council
Office equipment
BT
HK$'000
n2019%481H At 1 April 2019 2,118
FEE Depreciation for the year (424)
M2020E3 831 BE At 31 March 2020 and
202054818 1 April 2020 1,694
FETE Depreciation for the year (424)
72021331 H At 31 March 2021 1,270
HENB B RE RERS 35
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14. FHEEE 14. LEASE LIABILITIES
®H $ENB
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT ETIT BT BT IT
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
w481 H At 1 April 1,919 2,362 1,734 2,118
MEZH Interest expense (note 22) 69 91 64 83
[=ZR) Payments (555) (534) (466) (467)
HERE Exchange adjustments 12 - - -
M3A31H At 31 March 1,445 1919 1,332 1,734
BRTFSIRIRAVEER ¢ Reconciliation to the statement of financial
position:
mENEE Current liabilities 519 483 423 402
FEREEE Non-current liabilities 926 1436 909 1,332
W3/ 31 H At 31 March 1,445 1,919 1,332 1,734
15. &S 15. TOTAL FUNDS
£E8 *ENB
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BETT BT IT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXxEDE (K5 @) Capital subvention fund (note a) 105,610 112,196 105,610 112,196
WAEBhEIE (FIEE (b)) Revenue reserve (note b) 432,713 367,068 422,182 358,866
538,323 479,264 527,792 471,062
BEREE (M ©) Exchange reserve (note c) 2,234 800
540,557 480,064
IR RS (M5 ) Non-controlling interests (note d) 1,713 1,699
542,270 481,763
@ EAEBSR (@) Capital subvention fund
EEMEENR
The Group and the Council
2021 2020
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
m4B81H At 1 April 112,196 120,571
#HMAWZERE Transfer to income and expenditure account (6,586) (8,375)
Mm3B831H At 31 March 105,610 112,196
36 SENR BUEENRE R EHRES
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15. TOTAL FUNDS (continued)

(b)  Revenue reserve

£E8 $ENB

The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT BT T BT BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
n4B1H At 1 April 367,068 313,392 358,866 306,997
HEERIEARE Surplus for the year 65,645 53,676 63,316 51,869
N3A31H At 31 March 432,713 367,068 422,182 358,866

WAfERRER T CEREBREENDRNREE / (B

#B) MR

© BERER

This reserve was created for the purpose of recording the Group's and the Council's
accumulated surplus or deficit.

(c)  Exchange reserve

£
The Group

2021 2020

BT BIETIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

»w4H1H At 1 April 800 1,773
MERREBEHRERNELRER Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of

operations in the PRC 1,434 (973)

MW3A31H At 31 March 2,234 800

BMEREBERETBRNERYBREMELNE

PEFEER o

(d) FFIEARRRERIEL

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong.

(d)  Non-controlling interests

£E8
The Group
2021 2020
BETx BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
w481 H At 1 April 1,699 2,035
FE(LE Share of exchange reserve 151 (122)
FEELFE Share of deficit for the year (137) (214)
Mm3B831H At 31 March 1,713 1,699
S ENR B EENRE KRS 37
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16. FEHNEEEL

IR EA D BTE 2009 £ 6 B 22 BEETHI (171X
ZHESEY ( TESEL ) BB AENRAI
HREFERREEEYPHEMENSEREBERME
o AT ZHEBRKEREEREENR
REBYBFEEMESNFEBRITEEERNEEMN 15% -
20202021 FEMNBURE B BIERBES MR LERE
ROERPIFT SR AR ES BT A 0213 BT
(2019/2020 £ 1 0211 f8JT)  REARIAFEE
FEBD - 20202021 FEEMBTREEIETER 2122 &
JT (20192020 /& 1 2162 BT ) - AEHRERES
FREEAFEMUTFEL2 S AMESNBITESE
& e

20202021 FEAENRNBFENZ SN KEZIREN
BT BB AZGIER (2019/2020 FE : RLE) -

17. BRIEUIA

16. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTION FOR RECURRENT ACTIVITIES

Annual block grant

In accordance with paragraph 8.1 of the Memorandum of Administrative Arrangement
("MAA") dated 22 June 2009 signed between the Government and the Council, the Council
is allowed to keep any savings from its annual block grant as reserves. At any one point
in time the level of accumulated savings from the Council's annual block grant shall
not exceed 15% of its annual block grant in the current financial year. The government
subvention for the year of 2020/21 includes the grant from Innovation and Technology
Fund for Automotive Parts and Accessory Systems R&D Centre of HK$21.3 million (2019/20:
HK$21.1 million) which is not classified as annual block grant. The total block grant of the
Council for the year of 2020/21 was HK$212.2 million (2019/20: HK$216.2 million). The
annual block grant from the Government in the current and prior years has been fully
expended by the Council in accordance with the MAA.

The annual block grant of the Council for the year of 2020/21 was entirely accounted for as
Government subvention income in the income and expenditure account (2019/20: same).

17. SERVICE INCOME

- 4E ] $ENB
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
FiaE BT BIETIT BT BIETIT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KEEFEXISHA Revenue from contracts with
customers
RERI AR S - Consultancy 454,546 374,286 432,106 369,922
=3l ~Training 13,706 11,578 13,706 11,578
BUEETIRR — Manufacturing support 19,271 21,583 19,271 21,583
RBESNERE — Exhibitions and study mission 2,242 5,094 2,242 5,094
EEEEQEIER — Hong Kong Jockey Club funded  (a)
project 2,449 1,271 2,449 1,271
REBF A ZHBA Total revenue from contracts with (b)
customers 492,214 413,812 469,774 409,448
KEEMAKRFIHA Grant income
BUFEsEE -Government funded projects 73,754 56,547 73,754 56,547
565,968 470,359 543,528 465,995

(@ ®E20214F3A831 HIEEE  £EHREKE
ERBEQEEETES 4138616 BT 2020 £ :
1,091,979 770 ) » AN FFFBURABSIIREE S
FArEA RIS MBE D 2T E -

EENR BIRBERE RITFRE

(@)  Allocation from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust is for operating an
information technology consultancy service and capacity building programme for
non-governmental organisations and HK$4,138,616 (2019/20: HK$1,091,979) have
been received during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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17. BRFEEUWIA (&) 17. SERVICE INCOME (continued)
(b)  FERBUTABYRERE (b)  Timing of revenue recognition
£E8 $ENB
The Group The Council

2021 2020 2021 2020

BT BT T BT BIETIT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PNE—F R 2L At a point in time 135,890 136,401 135,890 136,401

PERFRIHETS Over time 356,324 277,411 333,884 273,047

REBPEHIZ BN Total revenue from contracts with
customers 492,214 413,812 469,774 409,448

TRETHAREHERAZIMASE - HHR ()

ERATEAGHEER *

(@

Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

2021 2021
£E8 $ENE
The Group The Council
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS AR TS Consultancy 98,052 97,657
=3 Training 1,049 1,049
BUEETRRIS Manufacturing support 2,880 2,880
101,981 101,586

2020 2020
£E $ENE
The Group The Council
BT BETT
HKS$’000 HK$'000
BARI AR S Consultancy 88,609 88,609
23l Training 2,462 2,462
BUEET IRRIS Manufacturing support 1,092 1,092
REENRETH Exhibitions and study mission 230 230
92,393 92,393

d) FEREE (d)  Performance obligations

WABRERE @R ERERBERREENR
£ - WATEBHERS IR - BEE AR AN RERED
MEBHEE - —RFAREREMERES AEH
ENE/

required before rendering the services.

For service income recognised at a point in time, the performance obligation is satisfied
upon delivery of services. For service income recognised over time, the performance
obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered. Short-term advances are normally

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
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18. HAMhlgA 18. OTHER INCOME
e $ENB
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT ETIT BT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HESUWA Rental income 1,552 6,570 1,552 5917
FEWA Interest income 1,878 3,154 1,755 3,030
s —EBE AR W Gain on deregistration of associate - 13 - -
WA Sundry income 11,723 4144 11,473 3,688
HKIFEBD Government grant 10,785 - 10,785 -
25,938 13,881 25,565 12,635
19. BEEHE 19. STAFF EMOLUMENTS
e $ENB
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT AEETIT BT BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e LOT EET Salaries and variable pay 337,098 315,341 328,756 306,156
K <& Gratuities 1,960 2,280 1,960 2,280
B AE ~ BR A EAER, Overtime, subsistence and other
allowances 13,703 13,294 13,703 13,294
B E#HEEM Staff education allowances = 158 = 159
BEZSHA — BEMRNETE Pension costs - defined contribution plans 33,081 31,085 33,081 31,085
BEREAEE Medical benefits scheme 9,749 9,262 9,749 9,262
395,591 371,420 387,249 362,236

& Eatah - BB 26,865,000 75 (2020 4F : 19,472,000
Jt) EftAEEREENREEHEEYH -

HENR BIHENSRE REERE
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20. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

SMEE A B ERER LA E D BIZMIRISPTIER The aggregate remuneration (salaries, allowances, benefits-in-kind and provident fund
(< 2B - BYEAMATESMER) BT - contributions) received by the senior management for their services rendered to the Group

and the Council are listed as follows:

KEREENR
The Group and the Council
2021 2020
BETT EETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEE - AR Mohamed Din Butt, Executive Director 4,446 4356
RS BIAAE (RIEEE) Lawrence Cheung, Director, Technology Development 3,396 3,250
EOIR 0 BB (h¥EER) Gordon Lo, Director, Business Management
(PR 201941 B 31 HEBIK) (retired on 31 January 2019) - 13
B, 0 BIAER (80%) Edmond Lai, Director, Digital 3,286 3,106
WIEE - B &84 Vivian Lin, Chief Operating Officer, Funding Schemes
(K2 2021 #£3 1 BfEap) (appointed on 1 March 2021) 234 -
11,362 10,825
21. £ENRESEEEAERIEM 21. REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
RER AENREFEREMEBESREBRMERE During the year, the Chairman and other members of the Council did not receive any
ENRRENRSBEUERZFHIM (20204F 1 F) - remuneration for their services rendered to the Council (2020: Nil).
22. HfthZH 22. OTHER EXPENSES
£ £ENB
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT BIETIT BT BIEETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—RE AT General and administrative expenses 47,588 43,524 45,854 41,210
IEEMESH Project related expenses 259,202 190,720 249,881 199,222
HEWE - MENREEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 596 273 590 260
e Depreciation
—WZ ~ BEMRME - property, plant and equipment 43,249 48251 43,026 47,994
—[FREEE - right-of-use assets 509 491 424 424
B E#E Amortisation of intangible assets 4,948 4356 4,933 4340
HEaEBECHE Interest expense on lease liabilities 69 91 64 83
Gl Auditor's remuneration 1,084 916 583 481
HIESH Sundry expenses 13,460 16,326 13,219 16,248
370,705 304,948 358,574 310,262
S ENR B EENRE KRS 41

HKPC Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 2020-21



RAFEERaRbIAE

Notes to the Financial Statements

#BZE 2021 &£ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

23. Fhi5#

23. INCOME TAX

@ MFEWSZIREFIREIMERE - (@) Income tax in the consolidated income and expenditure account
represents:
-5
The Group
2021 2020
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000

AH - FBLUOMEERIA

Current tax — outside Hong Kong Provision for the year

148 147

RREENRERBRREEE (RBERE) %87 &
RRMANFTASEHIE - FILBRBMEBREH -

HREENRNEERBATNEE 2021 F£3 H 31 8
712020 £ 3 A 31 HIEMFEREERBEA - S

of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

The Council is not subject to Hong Kong profits tax as the Council has been granted
exemption from all Hong Kong taxes by the Inland Revenue Department under Section 87

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the Council's Hong Kong subsidiaries has been
made as they did not have assessable profit during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020:

EREBRIEBAER - Nil).
SENBHOFTENB AT/ EXZ 25% (2020 4 : Taxation for the Council's Mainland subsidiaries is charged at 25% (2020: 25%).
25%) ©
(b) MHBZHEFETREFLUERREMELAE (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting surplus at
AR : applicable tax rates:
£E8
The Group
2021 2020
BETx BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRELRIE ER Surplus before taxation 59,070 45,234
R s EEEERE Notional tax on surplus before taxation, calculated at rates
SHERFE RSN RERIE applicable in the jurisdictions concerned 9,506 7,328
HERRIA R IE S £ Tax effect of non-taxable income (132,552) (118,159)
RAliEH = HFi IE S £ Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 123,194 110,978
BEMIESH Income tax expense 148 147

42
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#HZE 2021 £ 3 A 31 HIEFEE Year ended 31 March 2021

23. INCOME TAX (continued)

() Movement in tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial

position:
g8
The Group
2021 2020
BT BIEETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
W48 1H At 1 April 120 6
FERIE Provision for the year 148 147
Y/
EHIP B ZEFTER PRC corporate income tax paid (56) (33)
W3 A31H At 31 March 212 120
BRI R Representing:
g8
The Group
2021 2020
BT BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR[EHIE Tax refundable (2) )
FENRLIR Tax payable 214 122
W3 A31H At 31 March 212 120

(d) SEHEMIAEEHERME:

TERERR  EEBEHIEBBAR 1,666,000 7 (2020 £F:
1,230,000 7t ) AIAEIEINZE HIREEAKTBARMNER
RIEZHFHE - EEERR  HNKREREREEEH
RIRIERT A AT LRI RIS E518 - FTRURSH AR
BIERARIEHIEEE - A AERNHRIESE (PR
FAR BN A AERINFIEEEMRIN ) TR AE
EAIZE HE BN B ARRIKRRERFFIE - AE
FAT BB RN IEEE 4 462,000 47T (2020
£F 1 738,000 BT ) MIERFEEIE -

EER 2021 F£3 331 HF 2020 £ 3 B 31 X EEF
BRNESELHIEEE -

(d)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses of approximately HK$ 1,666,000
(2020: HK$1,230,000) that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits of
subsidiaries in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these tax losses as, in the opinion of the management, it is uncertain whether
sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Unused tax losses (except those related to a subsidiary in China) can be carried forward
without time limit. The subsidiary in China has unused tax losses of HK$462,000 (2020:
HK$738,000) which will expire in five years.

The Group has no material deferred tax liabilities requiring recognition as at 31 March 2021
and 2020.

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
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24, 7KiE 24. COMMITMENTS
EHRERR - MARN RSB REABENERNRIED Capital commitments outstanding at the reporting date not provided for in the
™ consolidated financial statements were as follows:
KEREENR
The Group and the Council
2021 2020
BT EETIT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BE&X Contracted for 6,367 4,339
25. BFERESEMT A 25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
HERSHRE  SESR T ENERSZENT The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments as at the reporting date are
as follows:
ERIEE Financial assets
®H $ENB
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT EETIT BT T BIEETIT
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
LUSERRE A ST EN B E Financial assets at amortised cost
BIEEREWERR « TASFUE Financial assets included in accounts
LESNemEE (MIEE9) receivable and other current assets
(note 9) 105,719 104,932 104,655 104,337
Re ~ BRITEARERER Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits
(FMgE 10) (note 10) 1,090,658 607,150 1,068,119 589,056
FEW KB /ARIFIE Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 810 1,169
1,196,377 712,082 1,173,584 694,562
SEAaE Financial liabilities
£E8 $ENB
The Group The Council
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT BT IT BETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LABERRE A Bt EM =R EE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
BEEENERLETERN Financial liabilities included in accounts
SrRteE (fst11) payable and other current liabilities
(note 11) 751,066 92,449 748,741 91,646
HERE (M 14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 1,445 1,919 1,332 1,734
FENHIBARFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 11,926 11,841
752,511 94,368 761,999 105,221
44 SENR BUEENRE R EHRES
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Notes to the Financial Statements

#ZF 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

26. TREMEEERAREE 26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

SETERXEBEEPSEAGFE RBEDS ~ AIXK Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest-rate and currency risks arises in the normal course
SNERER o BEERRERBEENYBEREBER AR of the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
mEE - BEET management policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are

described below:

@ 1EEREK (@)  Creditrisk
EFENEERRTEREEKER - eEBEHEEE The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank balances, fixed deposits, contract
BoR  BREEEEERREE assets and accounts receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and exposure to

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

2021 7 3 F 31 HA12020 7F 3 A 31 HHIRS Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2021 and 2020
B[ R F RS ER
TEREIIH 2021 F£3 B 31 HA 20204 3 A 31 HER The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based
AEENGEEBRERNGEEERAESEERR (FBXE on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless other
REBIER  BRIFEMERN AIAERETEARNERAD information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as
BAMBERTERS ) REEREERDN - at 31 March 2021 and 2020.
] The Group
72021 F3H31H As at 31 March 2021
+Z{@ER
FRERIE RSB
Exposure to 12 month ZHTRHRE RIS
expected credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
f{L7GiL
581 PERR 58 2 PERY 8 3 PR Simplified ok
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
T BT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEUBR TR Accounts receivable* - - - 16,062 16,062
BREE Contract assets - - - 132,430 132,430

SHAFERFIE « RS REH  Financial assets included in
HEWERIENSRIEE  prepayments and deposits

—1E5 - Normal** 89,994 - - - 89,994
ReMRESEEY Cash, bank balances, and fixed
deposits
—HARBH — Not yet past due 1,090,658 - - - 1,090,658
1,180,652 - - 148,492 1,329,144
S ENR B EENRE KRS 45
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B2 2021 &£ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

26. THEEEERAREE (B)

@ 1EERM (&)
$2020%F3831H

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2020

+_{ER8
FRERIEHESIR
Exposure to 12 month ZHIFREA(EEEIE
expected credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
7%
58 1 BEER 5 2 PRy 5 3 FEER Simplified b
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BT BETIT BETIT AETTT AETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEWBRSR * Accounts receivable* - - - 25,922 25,922
BREE Contract assets - - - 63,360 63,360
FEAFEAEIE « e K&E Finandial assets included in
HEBGIEN SR E E prepayments and deposits
—IE® - Normal** 79,225 - - - 79,225
HEeERRSEEY Cash, bank balances, and fixed
deposits
— MR ~ Not yet past due 607,150 - - - 607,150
686,375 - - 89,282 775,657
* AL EERREMRENEVRAMS » LUIEBE * For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified approach for

B RERE RN M ISR MEE o IMEE -

= EFATRARE - RELEMERRENSREE
WA R REN BT EEMEE B DIRER
LERMEERBAREFR  ZSEEMNEEER
W TIEE -

BHZE 2021 F3 831 BIEFE » SEARRFIEKER
AL FEU BRFRARZARY 53% (2020 £E 1 67% )

BZE 2021 F3 831 BIEFE  EEARBFNAEHNE
BB EEEEEN 72% (2020 £F 1 29%) -

BANEEREERRFEERBNE—SEREDT 5|
TRIRMEE 9 o

46 EENR BIRBERE RITFRE

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 9.

x* The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments and deposits are
considered to be "normal" when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition.

As at 31 March 2021, 53% (2020: 67%) of the total accounts receivable was due from the
Group's five largest customers.

As at 31 March 2021, 72% (2020: 29%) of the total contract assets related to the Group's five
largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising are
set out in note 9.
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RAFSERaRbIAE

Notes to the Financial Statements

#ZF 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

The Council

As at 31 March 2021

+Z@EA8
FRERIEREIR
Exposure to 12 month 2 HIFEHREEESIR
expected credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
f{L75i&
55 1 PEER 5 2 PRy 55 3 PEER Simplified HazE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BT BT BETTT BT BIETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEWUERSR * Accounts receivable* - - - 15,710 15,710
BREE Contract assets - - - 132410 132410
STATEAEIE « S KE  Finandial assets included in
HOFEWERIEMNERIEE  prepayments and deposits
—IEE ** ~ Normal** 89,223 - - - 89,223
BeNREEEY Cash, bank balances, and fixed
deposits
— HAREH] - Not yet past due 1,068,119 - - - 1,068,119
1,157,342 - - 148,120 1,305,462
F2020F3 B31H As at 31 March 2020
+=@8
FRHIEERSIE
Exposure to 12 month ZHITRHAEEEIE
expected credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
fkriE
58 1 PR 58 2 BEEY 8 3 PEEEX Simplified FLEE]
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
JEUSBRFR * Accounts receivable* - - - 25,893 25,893
BREE Contract assets - - - 63,360 63,360
STATEIFIE ~ #%2$e MHE Financial assets included in
M EWFIE B R E E prepayments and deposits
—IEE — Normal** 78,659 - - - 78,659
ReKRSEEY Cash, bank balances, and fixed
deposits
— AR ER — Not yet past due 589,056 - - - 589,056
667,715 - - 89,253 756,968
£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE 47
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26. EREEEERAREE (&)

(@) 1EEEM ()

* MAKEERREMCENERBERRM S - DUEE
SRR BRI RN M AR AT o MEE -

o BRIATRNHIR RS RAMBYFENSREE
WEHH AW EENBETIZSESRNEEBDRER
DIRIVEERBRAE LT - ZEEENEEER
WRE TIER, -

HZE 2021 F3 831 BIEFE » FEAARFPHIEKER
AL TEERFABZEAY 54% (2020 4 1 67%)

BE20214F3 A3 HEFE  EERARBRFPHENE
BRI E EARZERY 72% (2020 £ 1 29% ) -

BENEEREERRNEERBNE—SEEDT 5|
TRIEE 9 o

(b) REBEZER

SENBREERELZRBDESHNR » DIEREFTR
RS EE - BAZIMREOME RS BRIRRNEEMN
Eo
TERFIIHHITAEM B RENRE B2 MG RIS
o BWIMRIRETOARMEERSRE (BELMETOMNES
BREXH  BRFBANE - BIRRESRE H 2B
MERAEZHNEZ ) RAKEREENRAREFEN
M B BHIMEH -

EENR BIRBERE RITFRE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

* For accounts receivable to which the Council applies the simplified approach for

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 9.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments and deposits are
considered to be "normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition.

As at 31 March 2021, 54% (2020: 67%) of the total accounts receivable was due from the
Council's five largest customers.

As at 31 March 2021, 72% (2020: 29%) of the total contract assets related to the Council's
five largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Council 's exposure to credit risk arising
from accounts receivable are set out in note 9.

(b)  Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to satisfy its contractual and reasonably foreseeable
obligations as they fall due.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
and the Council can be required to pay.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

#ZF 2021 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2021

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk (continued)

£E The Group
2021 £ 2021
HRETHY
KRR iBB—FE BBmEE
RERE BR—FA MBS NBREF
Total HEER More than More than
BRE{E contractual Within 1 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years
BETT EETT BT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEaE (ME 14 Lease liabilities (note 14) 1,445 1,511 563 482 466
BSafEeEE S MEM  Finandal liabilities included in
FEATFRIA (BYEE 11) accounts payable and other
current liabilities (note 11) 751,066 751,066 751,066 - -
752,511 752,577 751,629 482 466
E£ENB The Council
2021 £ 2021
HETHY
KRR iBB—FE iBBmEE
RERE BR—FA MBS NBREF
Total HEER More than More than
BRE{E contractual Within 1 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years
BETT EBETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EEaE (ME 14 Lease liabilities (note 14) 1,332 1,398 466 466 466
B afEeEg S EM  Finandal liabilities included in
FEATHRIA (BIEE 11) accounts payable and other
current liabilities (note 11) 748,741 748,741 748,741 - -
e B ARFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 11,926 11,926 11,926 = =
761,999 762,065 761,133 466 466

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
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26. THEEEERAREE (B)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(b) RENELERE (&) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
&5 The Group
2020 5 2020
HETHY
KRR i8id—FE iBiBmFE
RERE BR—FA NNBRE NBRF
Total HEER More than More than
BRE{E contractual Within 1 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5years
BETT EBETR BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HESE (M5 14 Lease liabilities (note 14) 1,919 2,052 551 555 946
BEafEeEE S MEM  Finandal liabilities included in
FERTFRIR (BEE 1) accounts payable and other
current liabilities (note 11) 313,326 313,326 313,326 - -
315,245 315,378 313,877 555 946
E£ENR The Council
2020 5 2020
HETHY
KRR i8iB—FE iBiBRFE
RERE BR—FA NNBRF NBRF
Total HEER More than More than
IREE contractual Within 1 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5years
BETT BT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEAE (ME 14 Lease liabilities (note 14) 1,734 1,863 465 466 932
B afEeEg s EEM  Finandal liabilities included in
FEATFRIA (BIEE 1) accounts payable and other
current liabilities (note 11) 312,523 312,523 312,523 - -
FENHIBATFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 11,841 11,841 11,841 - -
326,098 326,227 324,829 466 932
50 HENR BIHENSRE REERE
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(€ FIRMEMR
L ENRRR BRI FEERMN L

(d) FMEBERz
HE R BB HEERINEER

(e) HEAEIHE

EEPTREN TEAR, BERESWATEAEMED - &
ErEHREEMERNRETRZEBMELNZS
ERERER -

SEEREANE R BERRREEEERNTELE
DARTERERERN A RARRN BN EE -

EERREFNEATERTE  CHERALEEEEN
BERGEE - EAFEMURNEE - AEDRNMEEMAM
BARBEZ ZIINRIE NN E AR ERTARIR

27. FABRSRS

BRI HmER BB IWENR 5 LRI EEGRNE
AT 2% -

SENRNBEERERHBFTHRRERT - BRNEK
AL ENRBREERTESN LA ENRERT
ZENRZWERBEB IR LRAKREARD RS
R AENRBEBGREENREEEREHE
TR AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

#HZE 2021 £ 3 A 31 HIEFEE Year ended 31 March 2021

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

() Interest rate risk

The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to interest rate risk.

(d)  Currency risk

The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to currency risk.

(e)  Capital management

The Group defines "capital” as including all components of total funds. Trading balances
that arise as a result of trading transactions with other group companies are not regarded
by the Group as capital.

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall
due for the foreseeable future.

The Group's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the Group. Neither the Council nor its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirement in the current and prior years.

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group entered into the following related party transactions during the

year:

Council Membership of the Council is appointed by the Chief Executive of the
Government. The Government has significant influence over the Council, and transactions
between the Council and the Government are considered to be related party transactions
and are identified separately in these financial statements. During the year, the Council had
the following related party transactions with the Government and Council Members:

2021 2020

BT T BIETIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

IWERBR T E B - AR EMEEED Receipt of government subvention used for recurrent activities 233,460 237,362

BTER) Government grant 10,785 -

REBHTHIRIFWA (FisEa) Service income from the Government (note a) 163,537 126,052

REBFEBEBHWA (MizEb)  Service income from government funding schemes (note b) 131,877 74,750

WABEENRESSREEFEN Income from entities related to members of the Council

i 983 -
RERLEENBESSREEBEN Purchases from entities related to members of the Council

i 60 80

£ ENRB BIZHENRE RS RE
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27. BABEARS (f
ER

)

g

@ REBFMBREBAIESREBHEEE RNEZE -
RS ¥5EE  NERRBESER  UtSF
EEYEBRERN  NEBARRBFHIIR]
BHBRMEE - MAARENBARIRRBEERIK
B o

()  REBFNEFINBAERIRRS (BRE/RRT
BWEETCRE) MeftUBERRERE 1S
HEVZEBHREDNHEREAMBHET L iH®
MHYS » TR BRI A2 R R s (AR U Y

28. LEBBF
EFLBEFEENNE  LHAFEEL 257 -

29. EAFEERIFRAVILE

REBmETBAEENBR 2021 £ 7 B 28 BROENZHFA]
B o

EENR BIRBERE RITFRE

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes:

(@) The service income from the Government relates to projects in environmental
management, technology development, information technology, business management,
secretariat projects with the Government, etc., which were obtained either by a
competitive process or through partnership agreements with various government
departments and bureaux, and the income was charged in accordance with the terms of

the agreements.

(b) The service income from government funding schemes relates to projects in research
and development (excluding projects acting as implementation agent) and secretariat
projects which were obtained by a competitive process or through agreements with
Innovation and Technology Commission, and the income was charged in accordance
with the terms of the agreements.

28. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation.

29. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 28 July
2021.
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